UNCONFIRMED

UNCONFIRMED


[bookmark: _GoBack]CWM TAF MORGANNWG UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD

 ‘UNCONFIRMED’ MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE POPULATION HEALTH & PARTNERSHIPS COMMITTEE 
HELD ON 2nd AUGUST 2023
VIRTUALLY VIA TEAMS 

PRESENT:
Carolyn Donoghue 		-	Independent Member (Chair)
Jayne Sadgrove			-	Vice Chair Health Board/Independent 
Member
Ian Wells 				-	Independent Member
Mel Jehu				-	Independent Member
Lynda Thomas 			-	Independent Member

IN ATTENDANCE:
Linda Prosser			-	Executive Director of Strategy & 
Transformation
Gethin Hughes			-	Chief Operating Officer 
Julie Denley 			-	Deputy Chief Operating Officer – 
Mental Health, Primary Care and Community Services
Richard Hughes			-	Deputy Director of Nursing, Midwifery 
& Patient Care  
Victoria Wallace 			-	Deputy Director of Strategy & 
Partnerships
Lauren Edwards 		-	Executive Director of Therapies & 
Health Science
Philip Daniels 			- 	Interim Executive Director of Public Health 
Cally Hamblyn			-	Assistant Director of Governance & 
Risk
Lisa Love-Gould			-	Clinical Director, Allied Health 
Professionals (in-part)
Bethan Underwood 		-	Health Housing Innovation Manager 
(In-part)	
Kathrine Davies	Corporate Governance Manager          (Meeting Secretariat)  

PART 1 – PRELINARY MATTERS 

1.1.0		WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS 
Carolyn Donoghue welcomed everyone to the meeting including:

· Mel Jehu – Independent Member and new member of the Committee.
· Lisa Love-Gould - Clinical Director of Allied Health Professionals will be joining the meeting for Agenda Item 6.3.
· Sara Utley, Audit Wales – will be observing the meeting as part of the Structured Assessment 2023 fieldwork.
· Richard Hughes, Deputy Director of Nursing is in attendance on behalf of Greg Padmore-Dix. 
	
1.2.0 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were RECEIVED from the following:

· Sarah James – Deputy Chief Operating Officer
· Greg Dix, Director of Nursing, Midwifery & Patient Care/Deputy Chief Executive
· Sara Thomas – Consultant Public Health 
· Mary Self – Medical Director Mental Health LD Care Group
· Anne Morris - Associate Board Member
· Craig Edwards - Environment, Waste & Fleet Senior Manager	

1.3.0 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
There were none declared. 

PART 2 - CONSENT AGENDA

2.1 ITEMS FOR APPROVAL 

2.1.1		Minutes of the meeting of 3rd May 2023 were RECEIVED and
CONFIRMED as an accurate record.

2.1.2	The Committee Annual Report for 2022-23 was RECEIVED and ENDORSED FOR BOARD APPROVAL. 

	2.2 ITEMS FOR NOTING 

2.2.1		The Strategy Groups Report was NOTED. 

2.2.2		The Action Log was NOTED. 

	PART 3 - MAIN AGENDA

3.1.0		SPOTLIGHT: SHARED LISTENING AND LEARNING STORY – CARDBOARD RECYCLING
L. Prosser provided a presentation to the Committee on the Cardboard Re-Cycling Project that has been nominated for an NHS Wales Award.

		C. Donoghue thanked L. Prosser for the presentation. 

Mel Jehu queried the location of the Recycling Centre and whether it was open to the public.  V. Wallace confirmed that it was on the Business Centre site at Merthyr Tydfil. 

M. Jehu, referred to the South Wales Police centre in Bridgend where the police horses and dogs were trained and housed and suggested that they might give consideration to working with the centre for a similar type of project.  V. Wallace confirmed they this could be explored for the future. 

I Wells added that Bridgend College provided courses on equine studies and suggested that there might be possible links with them. 

L. Thomas commented that it was a fantastic example of innovation and queried if there were any opportunities to further scale up the project in other areas of the Health Board.  

L. Prosser recognised that the project demonstrated the value that could be allowed when you provide colleagues with the space to explore different ways of working and engage with partners. She advised that they would be presenting the project to the Public Service Board regarding how activities could be achieved working differently together. 

J. Sadgrove positively recognised the way the project was aligned to the Anchor Institution and creating quality employment for local people. 

Resolution: 	The Committee NOTED the presentation. 

4. GOVERNANCE

4.1.0			ORGANISATIONAL RISK REGISTER
C. Hamblyn presented the report that provided and update on the current risks allocated to the Committee.  

C. Hamblyn advised that the report was self-explanatory, and that one risk had been escalated and assigned to the Committee, which was Risk No. 9 – ‘Fulfilling our Environmental and Social Duties and ambitions’ with a risk score of 16.

C. Donoghue thanked C. Hamblyn for the report and advised that it was positive to see that the risks were now being updated more frequently with more narrative on the actions. 

Resolution:		The Committee: NOTED the report and REVIEWED the risks escalated to the Organisational Risk Register at Appendix 1. 

4.2.0		UNIVERSITY HEALTH BOARD STATUS PROGRESS REPORT 
R. Hughes presented the report that provided the Committee with an update on the progress in further development of our University Designation Status with academic partners, to achieve the shared goal of creating healthier communities together.

I Wells referred to paragraph 2.5.2 and queried why this was only limited to two partners and whether there were any plans to take this forward with other partners in the future.   He also referred to paragraph 2.7 with regard to the Innovation Fund and queried why it was only for Cardiff Metropolitan University. 

In response, R. Hughes advised that he would seek a response to these queries outside of the meeting and would revert back to the Committee in due course. 

J. Sadgrove commented that the focus of the Health Boards interaction with other universities was with regard to their health and life sciences disciplines and queried whether those interactions could be broadened into the digital and informatics space and social sciences.  She advised that Cardiff University had a number of research interests in public health, and she was sure that other universities would also have a similar breadth. 

R. Hughes responded that their interactions were more dominant with the clinical schools, however, he welcomed the comments for which he would feedback to the team. 

M. Jehu referred to paragraph 2.6.1 and 2.6.2 with regard to the work being undertaken by the People Team and Digital Team and suggested that it would have been helpful to have seen the outcomes to the actions in terms of whether the activity had achieved its objectives.   R. Hughes agreed to feedback on the programme achievements and progress to date at a future meeting. 

C. Donoghue welcomed the positive activity in this area and was delighted that it now reported into the Committee. She reflected on M. Jehu’s point and advised that it would be beneficial for the achievement of outcome measures to be included in updates in future.  She also advised that it would be helpful to embed this further into the Integrated Medium-Term Plan (IMTP). 

C. Donoghue supported J. Sadgrove’s point and added that it was not just about health disciplines as there was also a huge potential around social sciences.

C. Donoghue queried how many people had honorary contracts and with whom, what were the links and whether they were asking people to self-report.  R. Hughes confirmed that they were asking people to self-report, they were also developing a more robust process moving forward so that they were aware who exactly had honorary contracts and that it was a transitional period at the moment. 

J. Sadgrove, in response, advised that there would be joint contracts in place between workforce departments and the institutes as part of the governance process. 

C. Hamblyn advised that the Declaration of Interest Form had been strengthened to include academia and university links. 

R Hughes agreed that he would address these actions with workforce colleagues. 

Resolution:		The Committee NOTED the report and progress in further development of the University Designation Status with academic partners to achieve the shared goal of creating healthier communities together.

Action: 		To query why the link was only with two universities and seek clarification on the Innovation Fund with Cardiff Metropolitan University.

Action: 		To query access to the SimplyDo platform with other academic 	institutes.  

5. CREATING HEALTH

5.1.0         	POPULATION HEALTH MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
P. Daniels presented the report which provided an update on the population segmentation and risk stratification approach to Population Health Management in Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board.

I Wells commented that he considered this to be a great initiative that was leading the way in Wales.  However, he did have a couple of concerns in relation to the data how it would be used, and how the Health Board would ensure that GP colleagues were aware how to best analyse and use the data to benefit patient care. He added a further concern relating to the funding and until it becomes embedded into mainstream actual services the fragility of that would remain.  He suggested that champions might be needed to lead this activity. 

I Wells also referred to the buying of services from SAIL and queried why they did not use the National Data Resource (NDR) which was a similar service to SAIL and was free of charge.  P. Daniels advised that a meeting was planned to discuss NDR how it could be utilised within the Health Board.

In response, G. Hughes advised that the data had to be used in a way in which they could materially impact the patient outcomes co-ordinating inputs better and intervening earlier which would empower patients to become experts in their own disease.  

M. Jehu supported the comments made by I Wells and the benefits of these activities. However, he reflected that there were a number of obstacles and queried how these would be overcome to meet the objectives.  P. Daniels advised that there was a timetable contained within the report which demonstrated progression.  He added that he would reflect upon the points raised about the data sharing and fragility in terms of funding. 

Resolution:		The Committee NOTED the report and the progress made and future approach to Population Health Management outlined within the report.  

Action: 		To consider the points raised in relation to data sharing and funding fragility.

5.2.0		HEALTH PROTECTION SYSTEM FOR CTM	
P. Daniels presented the report that provided an update on the health protection structure in Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board.

I Wells referred to paragraph 3.4 and sought assurance that there was no reputational risk to the organisation.  In response, P. Daniels advised that the structure had received significant scrutiny from finance colleagues and conversations were still ongoing. 

C. Donoghue referred to the workforce risk on the clinical and administration contracts and queried what had been done in terms of mitigation.   P. Daniels advised that during the Covid-19 pandemic many members of the workforce had been appointed on fixed term contracts, this had now ceased, and they were being re-deployed into other posts. 

Resolution:		The Committee NOTED the progress of the Health Protection System outlined within the report

6. IMPROVING CARE

6.1.0		MENTAL HEALTH STATEGIC UPDATE 
J. Denley presented an overview of progress against the strategic priorities within for the Mental Health and Learning Disability Care Group.

M. Jehu referred to the “Right Care Right Person” and the way the police now intend to manage patients within the community and queried whether that would have any impact when implemented across Wales.   J. Denley advised that this it was probable, and that mitigating work was being put into place in readiness. 

I Wells referred to paragraph 1.7.4 that referred to an alternative digital CAMHS to complement traditional services and treatment and sought an update.  J. Denley confirmed that this had been established during the pandemic where people could access and self-refer for counselling and had been very well received.  It has since been extended and they had set aside recurrent funding for this. 

J. Sadgrove advised that it was positive to receive an update on mental health and advised that the Quality and Safety Committee had oversight on the improvement programme, however, for this Committee it was more in terms of the strategic direction.  She added that it was noted in the paper about the transformational change with the Care Groups and work still ongoing with the model and queried when the Committee would be in a position to see a longer-term strategy for mental health.  J. Denley advised that during the planning for the Integrated Medium-Term Plan (IMTP) the Care Groups were tasked with developing service delivery plans which were 85% completed.  She advised that they could bring something to the Committee around the time that they would be developing the IMTP for next year which would be quarter four. 

C. Donoghue commented on the estates strategy which noted that there was limited capital funding and expressed her concern that task and finish groups were being set up with the same people doing the work and she queried how they would ensure that this work was mainstreamed so that it continued once the groups had completed their activity.  J. Denley responded by advising that with regards to estates this would be considered within the context of the clinical services plan process and would relate to how they deliver services both in the community and within facilities. 

Resolution:	The Committee NOTED the report and agreed to receive a further
update in six months.  

6.2.0		LEARNING DISABILITY UPDATE REPORT 
J. Denley presented the report that provided an update for the Committee on the three-year plan for specialist Learning Disability
Services.  

J. Sadgrove referred to the table on page 16 which outlined length of stays and queried why there was one patient showing as 25 years, although it was expressed in months, as it was important that the care plans for individuals were kept under review and in the most appropriate place that they could be.

J. Denley advised that several reports had been received by the Quality & Safety Committee regarding this matter.  She advised that for some people it might be a solution that their plans were reviewed, however, the numbers were relatively low and for those patients who continued to be cared for they were reviewed on what was the best fit for them. 

Resolution:	The Committee NOTED the three-year plan for specialist Learning   Disability services outlined in the report and the Concise Modernisation Plan and Milestones and agreed to receive a further update in six months. 

6.3.0		INTERMEDIATE CARE WITH AHP FUNDING
L. Love Gould presented the Report that provided an outline of the CTM proposal on frailty, integration and prevention. 

L. Thomas referred to the national shortage of therapists and asked whether they had an alternative plan to mitigate the situation.  L. Love-Gould advised that they were enhancing the current workforce models and speaking to primary care and local authority colleagues on what they could do differently and more efficiently moving more into the reablement and healthcare support workers model which was a great resource and looking at that skill mix stratification model along with the long-term conditions work such as symptoms management.  She advised that it remained a risk, however, they were exploring as many alternative aspects as they could. 

L. Edwards thanked L. Love-Gould for presenting the report and advised that the recruitment drive would hopefully provide some opportunities and a webinar was being held the following Friday (4th August 2023) which was being advertised. 

M. Jehu referred to the recruitment process and the pressures that could cause staff to be absent with ill health.  L. Love-Gould advised that retention was as important as recruitment.  She added that they were committed to supporting the wellbeing of the workforce and that sickness was not a significant concern within the function. 

C. Donoghue commented that she was fully supportive of the proposal, noting that it was positive to see that the funding was recurrent.  With regard to the focus on falls it she advised that it would be useful to receive the outcomes and timescales for this service.  L. Edwards advised that the measures would be focussed and reported centrally to demonstrate that impact. 

Resolution: 	The Committee NOTED the report. 

		SUSTAINING OUR FUTURE 

6.4.0	REGIONAL INTEGRATED FUND UPDATE 
L. Prosser provided the Committee with a verbal update on the funding allocation. 

C. Donoghue referred to stroke funding and was pleased to note that the service was to continue. L. Prosser advised that they had £250k to invest over the winter and were looking to spend it in areas of service transformation. 

Resolution:	The Committee NOTED the update. 

6.5.0 			PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD UPDATE 
P. Daniels provided a verbal update on the merger of the Public Service Boards.

Members noted that a needs assessment and wellbeing plan had been developed that captured improvement on joint working priorities. 

Resolution: 	The Committee NOTED the verbal update.

6.6.0			RESILIENT COMMUNITIES & ANCHOR INSITUTION UPDATE
L. Prosser and V. Wallace provided an update on the change from the Anchor Institution Steering Group (AISG) to the Building Healthier Communities Group (BHCG). 

The Committee were advised that there were three key strategic themes to the delivery of the CTM strategy for 20230: Our Health, Our Future:
· Developing resilient communities
· Integrated community services
· Clinical services plan
It was advised that these were underpinned by quality, governance, digital, public health, finance, workforce, communication and engagement and value-based healthcare plans.

V. Wallace advised that governance and operational arrangements had been established.

V. Wallace further added that they would be meeting quarterly regarding the draft work plan with the next meeting being held in October 2023, following which they would hold a workshop to identify if there were any gaps.  A further verbal update will be provided to the November meeting of the Committee, if the work plan was not finalised, and a more detailed report in the New Year.  

M. Jehu queried if there was a focus on children’s wellbeing as well as adults.  V. Wallace advised that the work plan was inclusive of all ages. 

Resolution: 	The Committee NOTED the report and discussed and approved the change from AISG to BHCSG 

	7. OTHER MATTERS

7.1.0	FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24
The Chair asked Members if they had any suggestions to add to the Committee Forward Work Plan to send these to her.

Resolution:	The Committee NOTED the Forward Work Plan. 

7.2.0	COMMITTEE HIGHLIGHT REPORT 
The Chair suggested that this report be prepared by the Corporate Governance Team for consideration by herself and lead Executives outside the meeting.

7.3.0	ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 
	There was none to report. 

C. Donoghue advised the Committee that it was the last meeting for J. Sadgrove and paid tribute to her leadership, knowledge and immense contribution that she had provided to the Committee and wished her well for the future.  

7.4.0			HOW DID WE DO IN THIS MEETING?
The Committee Chair invited colleagues to relay any comments to her outside the meeting within the next two weeks.  

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be held on the 7th November 2023 at 9.30 am.






	Confirmed minutes of the PHP Committee 3 May 2023
	Page 10

	PHP Committee 
                       2 August 2023




